SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 6, 2011
9:05 a. m

9: 05: 20 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Darwin Peterson, Staff, Senator Stedman; Laury Scandling,
Assi stant  Superintendant, Juneau School District; Anne
Kurland, Juneau; Ellen Pavitt, Juneau; Corey Pavitt,
Juneau; Mary Halcala, Juneau; Shelley Wight, Executive
Director, Southeast Conference; Andi Story, Vice-President
Juneau School Board; denn Gel brich, Superintendent, Juneau
School District; Carl Rose, Executive Director, Association
of Al aska School Boards; John Alcantra, Juneau; Bruce
Johnson,; Elizabeth Nudelman, Director, School Finance,
Department  of Educat i on; Senator Kevin Meyer; Anni e
Carpeneti, Departnent of Law, Christine Marasigan, Staff,
Senator Meyer; Doug Woliver, Adnmnistrative Attorney,
Al aska Court System Dana Ownen, Staff, Senator Egan; Mx
Mertz, //;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Steve Bradshaw, Sitka School District; Bridget Kauffman,
Sitka; Karen Martinsen, Sitka; Jim Nygaard, Superintendent



of Schools, Cordova; Pete Hoepfner, School Board, Cordova;
Pete Lew s, Superintendent, Fairbanks North Star Borough
School District; Sue Hull, North Star Borough School
District, Fairbanks; Babes Hudson, North Pole; Bill Bjork,
Education Association, Fairbanks; Dave Jones, Assistant
Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough School D strict,

Sol dot na; LaDawn Dr uce, Pr esi dent, Kenai Peni nsul a
Education Association, Soldotna; Sammy Crawford, Kenai
Peni nsul a Borough School Board; Bill MLeod, D llingham

School District, Dillingham Sergio Acuna, Construction
| ndustry, Anchorage; Pat Falor, Local 341, Anchorage; Stacy
Al l en, Local 341, Anchorage; Kelly Nash, Kodi ak; Luke Ful p,
Kodi ak; Bill Watkins, Kodiak; Stuart MDonal d, Kodiak; 1Ian
Dutton, Alaska Sea Life Center; Fred Parady, North Slope
School District; Lon Garrison, Sitka; Russell Nelson,
DI lingham School District, D | I'i ngham Pear | Strub,
Bristol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Corporation, Dillingham
Ni cole Strub, University of Al aska Fairbanks, Bristol Bay
Canpus, Dillingham

SUMVARY
SB 15 SEX OFFENDER/ UNDERAGE ALCOHCL OFFENSE

SB 15 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

SB 58 | NCREASI NG NUMBER OF SUPERI OR CT JUDGES

SB 58 was REPORTED out of commttee wth individual
recommendat i ons acconpanyi ng new and previ ously
publ i shed fiscal notes.

SB 84 VOC ED FUNDI NG BASE STUDENT ALLQOCATI ON
CSSB 84 (FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth acconpanying fiscal
not es.

SB 90 BOARD OF PUBLI C ACCOUNTANCY SECRETARY

SB 90 was REPORTED out of commttee wth individual
recommendat i ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

#sb84
SENATE BILL NO. 84

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/06/11 9:05 A M



"An Act relating to funding for high school vocationa
education as a conponent of funding for public
schools; increasing the base student allocation used
in the public school funding formula; and providing
for an effective date."

9:06: 30 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman MOVED to ADOPT proposed CSSB 84(FIN), work
draft 27-LS0465\T.

Co- Chair Stedman OBJECTED for purpose of discussion.

DARW N PETERSON, STAFF, SENATOR STEDMAN, explained the
commttee substitute. He stated that sections 1 through 3,
whi ch pertained to the vocational education factor of 1.01,
remai ned the sanme as the previous version as did section 4,
t he base student allocation of $110 increase in FY 12. The
$115 base student allocation for FY 13 and $120 increase in
FY 14 had been renoved. He continued that sections 5
through 11 added a new entity that would be eligible to
receive cash contributions that corporations could wite
of f. These entities included any |earning center under the
Coastal Anmerica Partnership. He stated that the tax that
the credit could be applied towards already existed in
statue. He stated that sections 12 and 13 were new sections
that referred to the tax credits. The additional Coastal
American Partnership learning center that was being added
woul d be repealed in 2021. Section 13 extended the sunset
date for the changes made to the education tax credits in
SB 236, an Omibus Education Tax Credit Bill, to 2021.
Section 14 was the effective date of July 1, 2011

9: 09: 08 AM

Co-Chair Stednan W THDREW his OBJECTION. There being no
further OBJECTION CSSB 84(FIN), work draft 27-LS0465\T was
ADOPTED

Senat or Thonas pointed out to the commttee that the bil
woul d provide one year of stable school funding so that
districts could concentrate on educational outconmes rather
that cutting budgets and laying off faculty. He noted the
dedi cated funding stream for vocational/technical education
witten into the bill, which had been |acking support in
previous years. He urged support for the passage of the
| egi sl ation.

9:11: 02 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/06/11 9:05 A M



Co-Chair Stedman noted the two new SFIN fiscal notes, one
for the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent, one
for the K-12 Foundation Program one for the Al aska
Chal | enge Youth Acadeny. He stated that updated fiscal
notes to replace the SFIN notes would be required by the
comm ttee.

Co- Chair Stedman OPENED public testinony.

STEVE BRADSHAW SI TKA SCHOOL DI STRICT (via tel econference),
spoke in support of SB 84.

BRI DGET KAUFFMAN, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 84. She expressed concern for rising parent
fees for school |anguage and athletic progranms. She worried
that parents were struggling financially in order to give
their chil dren t he opportunity to participate in
extracurricular activities.

KAREN MARTI NSEN, SITKA (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 84. She hoped that the passage of the bil
woul d enhance training in career and technical education.
She revealed that wthin the last 3 years she had
personal ly spent $1,600 in vocational program fees for her
child. She feared that other children in the community were
not able to afford such fees.

JIM  NYGAARD, SUPERI NTENDENT OF SCHOOLS, CORDOVA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 84. He added that
the district needed nore funding in order to retain
prograns and staff.

9:17: 50 AM

PETE HCEPFNER, SCHOOL BOARD, CORDOVA (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 84. He stated that Cordova was
being forced to decrease staff, while at the sane tine
cl ass sizes were increasing.

9:18: 57 AM

PETE LEW S, SUPERI NDENDENT, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRICT (via teleconference), spoke in support of
SB 84. He explained the district was short on funding
despite the various attenpts that had been nade to spend
responsi bly.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/06/11 9:05 A M



SUE HULL, NORTH STAR BOROUGH SCHOOL DI STRICT, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of SB 84.

9:20: 06 AM

BABES HUDSON, NORTH POLE (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 84. She stated that the bill would help
special needs children who mght not go to a traditional
col | ege, but would benefit from vocational training.

9:21:46 AM

Bl LL BJORK, EDUCATI ON  ASSOCI ATI ON, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 84. He felt that
the nunber one resource developnent issue in the state
should be the devel opnent of our children. He felt that
this could not be done w thout quality schools.

9:23:12 AM

DAVE JONES, ASSI STANT  SUPERI NTENDENT, KENAI PENI NSULA
BOROUGH SCHOOL DI STRICT, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 84. He relayed that the base
student allocation increase was necessary in order for the
continuation of progranmatic staffing. He stated that the
vocation <courses in schools wthin the district were
perpetually full which resulted in children being turned
away from prograns.

9:24:47 AM

LADAVWN DRUCE, PRESI DENT, KENAI PENI NSULA EDUCATI ON
ASSCCI ATI ON, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 84. She stressed education accountability,
and accountability of teachers. She shared that there was a
pil ot teacher evaluation program beginning her area. She
stressed that standardized testing should not be the
statew de indicator successful schools.

9: 26: 24 AM

SAMMY CRAWFORD, KENAI PENI NSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL BQARD (Vi a
tel econference), testified in support of SB 84. She stated
that her district had not added any new prograns, but had
are still suffered from budget cuts. She said that the
bor ough had worked to beconme nore cost effective by cutting
energy costs and rebidding copy contracts and bus routes,
but cost continued to rise.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/06/11 9:05 A M



9:28: 02 AM

BILL MCLECD, DILLINGHAM SCHOOL DI STRICT, DILLINGHAM (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 84. He stressed the
i nportance of career and technical education prograns in
i nprovi ng graduation rates. He remarked that the passing of

the bill would allow for a reading specialist, which was of
great need in the community.
9:31:19 AM

SERG O  ACUNA, CONSTRUCTI ON | NDUSTRY, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 84. He stressed the
i nportance of vocational training.

9:32: 24 AM

PAT FALOR, LOCAL 341, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 84. He highlighted the
i nportance that other avenues were available to students
that were not going to a traditional college.

9:32: 56 AM

STACY ALLEN, LOCAL 341, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SB 84.

9:33:43 AM

KELLY NASH, KODIAK (via teleconference), testified 1in
support of SB 84.

9:34: 28 AM

LUKE FULP, KODI AK (via tel econference), spoke in support of
SB 84. As the Director of Finance for the Kodiak Island
Borough School District he believed that wthout an
increase in the base student allocation Kodiak could be

facing a budget shortfall of approximately $2 mllion in
FY12.
9:35: 12 AM

BILL WATKINS, KODIAK (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 84. He relayed that the dropout rates for
hi gh school students in Kodiak were very high. He pointed
out to the commttee that any student that had a departure
from school after their freshman year was determ ned a drop

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/06/11 9:05 A M



out, even if that student returned to finish at a |later
date. The graduation rate Representative Sal non based on a
student finishing in four years. He believed that |earning
was the constant and time was the variable. He argued that
there were nunerous variable not associated wth education
that could cause a student to drop out of school on a
tenporary basis. Mst school districts had alternative
programs in place to assist the students. He noted that
because the student would not graduate in four years they
woul d be counted as dropouts or non-graduates. He felt that
without SB 84 the graduation rates would decrease and
dropout rates woul d increase.

9:37: 20 AM

STUART MCDONALD, KODI AK (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 84. He expressed concern for academc
opportunities for students in |ogging canps and ot her snal
pockets comunities throughout the state. He stated that SB
84 would help to keep education relevant in rural Al aska.

9:40: 08 AM

| AN DUTTON, ALASKA SEA LIFE CENTER (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SB 84.

9:40: 53 AM

FRED PARADY, NORTH SLOPE SCHOCOL DI STRI CT (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 84. He stated
that his district cut 17 jobs in 2010, and w thout the
i ncrease would be forced to do the same this year.

9:42:18 AM

LON GARRI SON, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke in support
of SB 84. He shared that the Sitka School Board had
unani nously passed a resolution to support the |egislation.

9:43: 13 AM

RUSSELL NELSON, DI LLI NGHAM SCHOOL DI STRI CT, DI LLI NGHAM (vi a
tel econference), testified in support of SB 84.
9:43:46 AM

PEARL STRUB, BRI STOL BAY ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON
DI LLI NGHAM (vi a tel econference), spoke in support of SB 84.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/06/11 9:05 A M



She believed that vocational and technical offerings in
rural high schools should be strengthened.

9:45: 06 AM

Nl COLE STRUB, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, BRI STOL BAY
CAMPUS, DI LLINGHAM (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 84.

9:46: 49 AM

LAURY SCANDLI NG, ASSI STANT SUPERI NTENDANT, JUNEAU SCHOOL
DI STRICT, spoke in support of SB 84. She shared that the
district took seriously the issue of accountability and
that inprovenents had been nmade in achievenent and
graduation rates. She relayed that the district was
reconfiguring resources to reflect an investnent in career
and technical education. She opined that |ayoffs were still
expected even with the base student allocation increase.

9:49: 07 AM

ANNE KURLAND, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 84. She
said that the district had already cut $4 mllion from the
budget and wi thout the allocation increase an additional $1
mllion would need to be cut.

9:50: 20 AM

ELLEN PAVI TT, JUNEAU, spoke in strong support of SB 84.

9: 50: 59 AM

COREY PAVI TT, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 84.

9:51:43 AM

MARY HALCALA, JUNEAU, referred to a letter in the packet
from the Juneau Economic Council. She spoke in support of
SB 84.

SHELLEY WRI GHT, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, SOUTHEAST CONFERENCE,
referred to a letter from the Southeast Conference
expressing support of SB 84. She personally spoke in
support of SB 84.

9:55:13 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/06/11 9:05 A M



ANDI STORY, VI CE-PRESI DENT JUNEAU SCHOOL BOARD, testified
in support of SB 84. She referred to a letter of support
fromthe Juneau Board of Educati on.

9:56: 17 AM

GLENN GELBRI CH, SUPERI NTENDENT, JUNEAU SCHOCL DI STRICT,
spoke in support of SB 84.
9:57:19 AM

CARL ROSE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ASSOCI ATI ON OF ALASKA SCHOOL
BOARDS, testified in support of SB 84.

JOHN ALCANTRA, JUNEAU, spoke in support of SB 84. He stated
that the National Education Association supported the
| egi sl ati on.

9:59: 06 AM

BRUCE JOHNSQON, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 84.

9:59: 32 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FI NANCE, DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATI ON, addressed the departnent's position of the
| egi sl ation.

10: 01: 15 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report CSSB 84 (FIN) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng new fiscal note(s). There being NO OBJECTI ON
it was so ordered.

CSSB 84 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recommendati on and wi th acconpanying fiscal notes.

10: 01: 54 AM
AT EASE

10: 04: 01 AM
RECONVENED

#sb15
SENATE BI LL NO 15

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 04/06/11 9:05 A M



"An Act relating to penalties for certain alcohol
of fenses involving persons under 21 vyears of age
commtted by a sex offender or child kidnapper."

10: 04: 10 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER explained that SB 15 would raise the
penalty of contributing to the delinquency of a mnor for
regi stered sex offenders.

10: 05: 41 AM

Co-Chair Stedman |ooked at the two fiscal notes in the
packet. He stated that it was the intention of the
committee upon the next reading of the bill to replace the
Department of Corrections fiscal note with an indeterm nate
Senate Finance Commttee fiscal note.

10: 06: 14 AM

Senator Thomas wondered if the developnentally disabled
were currently protected under statute from exploitation
due to the distribution of alcohol.

Senator Meyer replied that the devel opnental |y disabled had
not been considered during the crafting of the |egislation.

10: 07: 18 AM

ANNI E CARPENETI, DEPARTMENT OF LAW CRIM NAL DiVISION
clarified that the substantive laws currently covered
peopl e who were unable to protect thenselves, such as the
devel opnmental |y di sabl ed. She added that there were
aggravating factors during sentencing for those found
guilty of commtting sexual acts on people who were
particul arly vul nerabl e.

10: 08: 10 AM

Senator O son wondered whether studies had shown that the
increased penalties had cut down on the instances of
assaul ts.

Ms. Carpeneti replied that the theory was that children who

consuned al cohol were nore vulnerable to sexual attacks and
that sex offenders had al ready displayed predatory conduct.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 04/06/11 9:05 A M



10: 09: 26 AM

Senator O son probed what was ultimately expected to be
acconpl i shed through the | egislation.

Senator Meyer replied that there were no docunented studies
that showed that passing legislation of this kind |owered
the instances of registered offenders deploying alcohol to
exploit mnors. He said that the bill was intended to
remove sex offenders who tenped minors with alcohol from
the streets and place themin rehabilitation.

10:11:27 AM

Senator MQuire commented that as the commttee discussed
fixing societal wongs it was inportant to take the
weaknesses in the corrections system into consideration.
She asked about famly nenbers who were registered sex
of fenders buying for mnor famly nenbers, and wondered how
many felons wuld be <created as a result of the
| egi sl ation.

Senat or Meyer understood that if it was proven in court
that a famly nenber on the sex offender registry bought
al cohol for a mnor famly nmenber - the |egislation would

apply.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, STAFF, SENATOR MEYER, responded that
according to the Anchorage Police Departnment in 2006-2007
there were 701 reported sexual assaults. O all of the
reported cases, 30 percent of the assaults involved victins
19 years old and younger. She relayed that for all of the
reported assaults, nore than half involved alcohol
According to national statistics people who used al cohol
who were between the ages of 12 and 20 were not purchasing
t he al cohol thensel ves. She concluded that the intention of
the legislation was to keep minors from obtaining alcohol
from predatory people who used al cohol as a groom ng tool
in order to entice young people into sexual situations.

SB 15 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb58
SENATE BI LL NO. 58

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 04/06/11 9:05 A M



"An Act increasing the nunber of superior court judges
designated for the third judicial district; and
providing for an effective date."

10: 15: 54 AM

DOUG WOOLI VER, ADM NI STRATI VE  ATTORNEY, ALASKA  COURT
SYSTEM explained the bill. He stated that the |egislation
would add two new superior court judges to the Anchorage
bench who woul d be assigned to civil cases. He stated that
l[itigants in famly law areas arriving to court wthout
representation were increasing. He stated that the overall
caseload in Anchorage was significantly higher in Anchorage
than in any other city in the state.

Co- Chair Stedman di scussed the eight fiscal notes.

10: 18: 38 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report SB 58 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying new
fiscal note(s): COR, SFINDPS and previously published
fiscal inpact notes: #1 CRT, #2 CRT, #3 ADM #4 ADM #7
LAW #8.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.
SB 58 was REPORTED out of commttee wth individual
recommendat i ons acconpanying new and previously published

fiscal notes.

#sb90
SENATE BILL NO. 90

"An Act classifying and setting a nonthly salary for
the executive secretary of the Board of Public
Account ancy. "

10: 19: 32 AM

Senator Egan referred stated that the bill would reclassify
a position according to |l egislation passed in 2010.

10: 20: 02 AM

DANA OVWEN, STAFF, SENATOR EGAN, explained that during the
26th legislature the commttee had authorized a position

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 04/06/11 9:05 A M



for the Board of Accountancy and had included in the budget
funds to pay for a range 23. The Depart nent of
Adm nistration had insisted on a classification study
before the law could be inplenented. The study detern ned
that the range should be a 19 and not a 23. The |egislation
argues that a range 19 was inappropriate to the position;
the position required a nore highly skilled and trained
i ndi vidual than would normally be found at a range 19. He
pointed out to the conmmttee that the noney for the
position was drawn entirely from fees, which resulted in a
zero fiscal note.

10: 21: 23 AM

Senator O son asked if an attenpt had been made to fill the
position at a range 19.

M. Ownen replied no.

Senator O son understood that the position was for a
secretary.

M. Omen replied that the position had been retitled:
Admi nistrative Director.

10: 22: 25 AM

MAX MERTZ, CERTIFIED PUBLI C ACCOUNTANTS, BOARD OF PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANCY, stated that an investigation into the position
had revealed the details of the position for other boards
of accountancy around the country and had conpared the
general market for the CPA community in Al aska. From that
investigation a salary range had been determ ned that would
be necessary in order to hire a person who net the position
requirenents.

10: 23: 17 AM

Senator O son highlighted that there had been no effort to
hire for the position at a range 19. He said that a study
had been done that indicated that the position was
appropriate at a 19 pay range.

M. Mertz explained that the Departnment of Adm nistration's

study, which conpared the statutory requirenent of the
position with the statutory requirenments of nurses and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 04/06/11 9:05 A M



nmedi cal admnistrators, had not evaluated the position
agai nst the market or positions that were simlar.

Senator O son wondered if there was a requirenent for the
position to be filled by a |licenses CPA

M. Mertz replied that it was not a requirenent.

10: 24: 47 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report SB 90 out of conmttee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e(s).

There being NO OBJECTION it was so ordered.

SB 90 was REPORTED out of conmttee wth individual
recommendat i ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

#
10: 25: 24 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:25 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 04/06/11 9:05 A M



